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QUESTIONS – ANSWERS – CLARIFICATIONS 

MINER AVENUE COMPLETE STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT NO. PW1607/ FEDERAL PROJECT NO. ATPL 5008(158); 
PROJECT NO. PW1732/ FEDERAL PROJECT NO. ATPSB1L 5008(170); AND 

PROJECT NO. PW1515/ FEDERAL PROJECT NO. CML 5008(188) 
 
 

1. Question:  Can we bid Decomposed Granite by ton? 
Answer: Decomposed granite shall be bid by the square foot, per the Plans and 

Specifications. 
 

2. Question: Bid form base bid: PW1732/Measure K Median & Alternative bid: open 
window. Please confirm if item #13 & 17 include decompose granite at all 
planting areas since planting areas only require 3" depth of decomposed 
granite per planting note 10/L3.1. 

Answer: Together, base bid: PW1732/Measure K Median item #13 and Alternative 
bid: open window item #17, include all the decomposed granite for the 
project, including at all planting areas. Refer to Plan Sheets C1.4 and C1.8 
for their respective limits. 

 
3. Question: Base bid PW1607/ATPL 5008(158), PW1732/ATPSB1L 5008 (170) and 

PW1515/CML 5008(188), there aren't any line items for plants, 
decomposed granite and irrigation but these items are shown within scope 
limit on Scope & Quantity plan (C1.2 through C1.8). Are these items 
included with Median scope of work? 

Answer  All base bid planting, irrigation, and decomposed granite work is included 
in PW1732/ATPSB1L 5008(170) – Measure K Median. 

 
4. Question: Is water meter 1-1/2" by others or by landscape contractor?  

Answer: Contractor is responsible for the water meter, including obtaining approval 
from the California Water Service Company. A Letter of Clarification will be 
issued. 

 
5. Question: Please clarify who (City or Contractor) is responsible for compaction testing 

onsite? Section 5-1.11 mentions City is doing inspection and 6-1.03 
mentions Contractor to hire independent testing consultant. Just 
confirming, Contractor is to carry cost for compaction testing in bid.   

Answer: Section 5-1.11 of the Specifications is for inspection requirements.  Refer 
to Special Provisions Section 6-1.03 for testing requirements.  Contractor 
is responsible for compaction testing. Refer to Question 89. 

 
6. Question: Does asphalt indexing apply to this project?   

Answer: No, asphalt indexing does not apply. 
 

7. Question: Please clarify asphalt binder type PG64-10/16 or…?  
Answer: Use PG 64-10 or PG 64-16. 
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8. Question: Please clarify asphalt gradation ½” or ¾” to be used? (1/2” for 1.5” & 3” 
overlay items, and 3/4” for 12” deep lift).  

Answer:  Refer to Legend on Plan Sheets C4.x and C9.1 detail 2. Use 3/4-inch 
maximum, medium aggregate grading, for the 3.0-inch AC overlay and for 
the 12.0-inch AC deep lift.  

 
9. Question: Second page of Bidders Checklist, fourth item down pertains to 

Construction & Demo Recycling Plan. Please confirm this plan/form is not 
to be submitted with the bid?    

Answer: The Construction and Demolition Recycling Plan is not required as part of 
the bid. Refer to Special Provisions Section 5-1.01. 

 
10. Question: Please clarify that basis of award for Base Bid includes all six Base Bids.  

Answer: The basis of award for Base Bid includes all six (6) Base Bids for each 
project number.  A Letter of Clarification will be issued. 

 
11. Question: Please clarify if the Greater Valley Conservation Corp is involved in 

PW1515 or Open Window work as no reference is made to them for similar 
“removal” and “install” items listed in other Base Bids.  

Answer: No, the Greater Valley Conservation Corp is only involved in the line items 
specified.  All other projects do not require the Greater Valley Conservation 
Corp. 

 
12. Question: Please clarify item #6 under Base Bid PW1732/Measure K Overlay to 

description under same item on page 44. Bid item list states “3”” and 
payment description states “1.5””.   

Answer: A 3.0-inch grind and overlay shall be constructed per the Plans. The 
payment for this shall be split into the various Bid Items for 1.5” Grind and 
Overlay (i.e. 1.5-inch + 1.5-inch = 3.0-inch). Refer to Question 53. 

 
13. Question: Please clarify the payment description for 1.5” Grind and Overlay (#18 on 

pg 31, #22 on pg 36, #6 on pg 44, #6 on pg 46, #11 on pg 48) as there are 
no separate items for payment of HMA or CLII AB (confusion is in statement 
“shall be considered as included in the prices paid for HMA and CLII AB”). 
Is it intended for this item to include full payment for both HMA and AB for 
supply and install associated with the 1.5” Grind and Overlay work?   

Answer: Disregard this portion of text “shall be considered as included in the prices 
paid for Hot Mix Asphalt and Class II Aggregate Base (for AB under 
pavement in street only),” for those five (5) Grind and Overlay Bid Items.  A 
Letter of Clarification will be issued. 

 
14. Question: In regard to the federal funding of this project, which of the following 

requirements are applicable?  AIS (American Iron & Steel Act), Buy 
America or Buy American. 

Answer: Please refer to Special Provisions Section 6-1.01 Buy America 
Requirements.  AIS and Buy American do not apply. 

 
15. Question: Please provide specifications for Decomposed Granite. 

Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued to provide specifications. 
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16. Question: Please clarify where the Stamped Concrete and Colored Concrete Band 
gets paid. 

Answer: Please refer to Plan Sheet C1.4, Note 5.  Note will be changed to clarify 
payment.  All materials and labor associated with installing the following 
within the entire project (base bids), excluding the defined Open Window 
Area: new colored concrete bands, stamped concrete, and decomposed 
granite.  A Letter of Clarification will be issued. 

 
17. Question: Please clarify, on Sheet L1.13, detail 1, note 1 calls out “4-inch integral 

colored concrete” but then under colors it states “dust-on color hardener”? 
Answer: It should not read: “integral colored concrete”, it should read; “4-inch 

colored concrete paving with stamp.”  A Letter of Clarification will be issued. 
 

18. Question: What does item 21 cover (Concrete Median Curb) in bid table 
PW1732/ATPSB1L 5008(170)? 

Answer: PW1732/ATPSB1L 5008(170) – ATP CYCLE 3, Bid Item 21 (Concrete 
Median Curb), includes the new median curb at the intersection of Miner 
Avenue and Aurora Street. Refer to Sheet C4.9, Key Note 12. 

 
19. Question: Please clarify what is covered in Misc Walkway Transitions for items 31 

(Roundabout bid table) and 34 (Open Window bid table)? 
Answer: This is a lump sum fee to cover pavement transitions to grade, not 

specifically identified on the Plans, and to cover field conditions. A Letter of 
Clarification will be issued. 

 
20. Question:  Please clarify if Standard Drawing R-36 for the T-cut applies to this job 

since there’s already the 12” deep lift and 3” overlay?  
Answer: The new pavement section portion of City of Stockton Standard Drawing 

No. R-36 does not apply. New asphalt concrete pavement along utility pipe 
trenching shall be per the Plans and Specifications. 

21. Question:  Can the City provide a schematic of the sewer systems beyond Miner 
Avenue?    

Answer: Please refer to Attachment A – Sanitary Sewer System Schematic. 
 

22. Question:  Can the City provide the flow rates for all the sewer pipelines within the 
project area?    

Answer: No flow rates available.  Assume pipe is flowing full and contractor will need 
to provide bypass plan for sewer bypassing, if necessary.  A Letter of 
Clarification will be issued. 

 
23. Question:  Does the City own a yard/property which can be provided for the contractor 

on Miner Avenue?    
Answer: Please refer to Special Provisions Section 5-1.15, Staging Area.  This 

requires the Contractor to secure required areas at their own expense. 
 

24. Question:  If groundwater is encountered, can fluids be disposed of within the existing 
Sanitary Sewer System?    

Answer: Please refer to Section 19-1.05, Dewatering. 
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25. Question:  Should demolition and disposal of existing manholes be included in Bid 
Item #7 – PW1732/WASTEWATER?    

Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued, adding a new bid item in 
PW1732/ATPSB1L 5008(170) – WW ENTERPRISE FUND, to cover the 
removal and disposal of existing sewer maintenance holes. 

 
26. Question:  Can the removal of the existing Sanitary Sewer pipelines and the 

installation of the 10-inch SS pipeline be combined into one bid item?  
Remove and Replace SS Pipeline?    

Answer: No.  Please refer to bid items.  “Remove Existing Sewer Pipe” and “10” 
Sanitary Sewer Pipe” shall be paid as two separate bid items. 

 
27. Question:  If the bid items cannot be combined, can a bid item be created within the 

bid schedule to account for demolition/disposal of the existing SSMH’s?    
Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued, adding a new bid item in 

PW1732/ATPSB1L 5008(170) – WW ENTERPRISE FUND, to cover the 
removal and disposal of existing sewer maintenance holes. 

 
28. Question:  When we tie-in the new 10-inch SS into the existing systems, is the 

contractor to remove the existing manhole or tie into the existing 
manholes?  This may require the installation of a new manhole?    

Answer: The new 10-inch SS shall tie into the existing maintenance holes.  Refer to 
Specifications Section 64-1.02, “Connect Pipe to Existing Structures or 
Existing Pipe.”  A Letter of Clarification will be issued to clarify this further. 

 
29. Question:  Plan drawing sheet C1.6 and bid schedule shows 17 each, “SS 

Connections”, noted within the Waste Water bid.  C5.0 through C5.9, there 
are 22-each SS Connections needed.  Can the City add bid items to the 
bid schedule so it can handle all the different SS Connections (SS 
Connections, SS Connections/ Extensions and New SS Connection/ 
Lateral/ SSCO)? 

Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued to revise the bid quantity.  No 
additional bid items will be added.  

  
30. Question: Plan Sheet C3.0 – There is a section of existing SD pipeline at station 1+90 

+/- which is to be removed at El Dorado Street.  Is this correct? If so what 
Item should the demo be paid under?  This appears to be part of Base Bid 
PW1607/ATPL 5008 (158) is this correct? If not, where should it be 
included within the bid? 

Answer: This is correct. This work is included in PW1607/ATPL 5008(158) - ATP 
CYCLE 2. A Letter of Clarification will be issued. 

 
31. Question:  Plan Sheet C3.1 – There two sections of existing SD pipeline at station 

3+00 +/- which are to be capped and sand filled. Is this correct? Shouldn’t 
the pipelines be removed to allow for new construction? 

Answer: This is correct. Contractor shall field verify existing utilities as part of their 
work, and, if existing SD pipelines are found to be in conflict with new 
improvements, existing SD pipelines shall be removed and disposed of. 
Otherwise, existing SD pipelines shall be plugged and filled, where they no 
longer provide storm drain collection. A Letter of Clarification will be issued. 
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32. Question: Plan Sheet C3.1 – There is a Storm Drain Inlet which is noted to be 
removed at station 6+00 +/-. Is there a SD pipeline which tie’s in this SDI 
which needs to be removed, capped and/or sand filled? 

Answer: No SD pipeline found in survey. Contractor shall field verify existing utilities 
as part of their work, and, if an existing SD pipeline is found, it shall be 
removed and disposed of if in conflict with new improvements, or it shall be 
plugged and filled if no longer providing storm drain collection and not in 
conflict with new improvements. A Letter of Clarification will be issued. 

 
33. Question: Plan Sheet C3.0 to C3.3 – Note 13 on plan sheet C1.2 identifies 323 LF of 

SD to be plug and filled for ATP Cycle 2, which applies to plan sheets C3.0 
to C3.3.  Please confirm that this quantity is correct? 

Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued to revise the bid quantity. 
 

34. Question: Plan Sheet C1.3 within note 14 identifies 30-each Storm Drain Inlets which 
need to be removed. The areas which relate with plan sheet C1.3 are plan 
sheets C3.4 through C3.8.  There are only 19 SDI’s which are shown to be 
removed in this area.  Can you verify the quantities please? 

Answer:  A Letter of Clarification will be issued to revise the bid quantity. 
 

35. Question: Plan Sheet C1.3 within note 15 identifies 919-LF of SD pipeline to be sand 
filled and capped.  This work is outlined on plan sheets C3.4 to C3.8. 
Please confirm this quantity is correct?  There is also 195-LF of pipeline 
which is noted to be removed (Note 20 on plan sheet C1.3). 

Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued to revise the bid quantity for “Plug 
and Fill Storm Drain Pipe” and to add a new bid item for removal of storm 
drain pipe. 

 
36. Question: Plan Sheet C1.7 note 13 identifies 4-each SDI Inlets to be removed.  There 

appears to be a SDMH which needs to be removed.  Under which Bid Item 
does this work get paid for? 

Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued, adding a new bid item. 
 

37. Question: Plan Sheet C1.7 note 14 identifies 325-LF of SD pipeline to be sand filled 
and capped.  Plan Sheet C3.2 only identifies 155-LF.  There are an 
additional 160-LF of SD pipelines but they are not noted to be removed or 
sand filled and capped.  Are these SD pipelines to be removed or sand 
filled and capped? 

Answer: These SD pipelines shall be plugged and filled. Refer to Sheet C3.3, Key 
Note 19. 

 
38. Question: Please clarify what the material type is of the existing storm drain pipe? 

Answer: Existing storm drain pipe material is unknown.  
 

39. Question: Please clarify what the material type is of the existing sewer pipe? 
Answer: Existing sewer pipe is Vitrified Clay Pipe. 
 

40. Question: The Demolition plan sheets (ie., C3.0, etc,..) depict the existing sewer pipes 
to be removed.  It does not call for sewer manhole removals as it appears 
these are to remain in service for other north / south sewer flows to remain 
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in service.  Please clarify what is required for the pipe demo interface at the 
manhole (pipe cut and concrete patch holes, etc,..). 

Answer: Refer to Specifications Section 64-1.02 Connect Pipe to Existing Structures 
or Existing Pipe. A Letter of Clarification will be issued to clarify this further. 

 
41. Question: The Demolition plan sheets (ie., C3.0, etc,..) depict the existing sewer pipes 

to be removed (Note #16).  These plan sheets also depict storm drain pipes 
that are to be plugged with concrete at each end and filled with sand as 
part an abandonment in place (Note #19).  It would be a cost savings to do 
the same with the deeper sewer pipes.  Please confirm abandonment in 
place will be acceptable (ie., sand fill, flow fill, etc,..) instead of complete 
excavation / removal of the pipe.  If pipe “removal” is required, please clarify 
the backfill requirements for these trenches regarding material (native 
backfill, etc,..). 

Answer: Existing sewer pipe shall be removed and disposed of per the Plans and 
Specifications. Refer to Specifications Section 19-1.03 Trench Excavation 
and Backfill. A Letter of Clarification will be issued to clarify this further. 

 
42. Question: Please provide the average and peak flow rates of the existing sewer 

system within the project limits? 
Answer: Contractor shall assume that existing sewer pipes are running full and shall 

prepare a bypass plan. A Letter of Clarification will be issued. 
 

43. Question: For new sewer manholes, please confirm saddle type manholes (CIP 
bases) will be acceptable for those manholes that intersect / connect with 
an existing sewer pipe.  This will allow for cost savings in this specific 
manhole installation application by eliminating the need for temporary 
sewer system bypasses. 

Answer: New sewer maintenance holes shall be per the Plans and Specifications. 
Contractor shall prepare a bypass plan. A Letter of Clarification will be 
issued. 

 
44. Question: Reference Special Provisions Section 19-1.03 (Trench Excavation and 

Backfill).  Under this section, page 100 provides gradation and R-value / 
SE requirements for “pipe bedding, envelope, and trench backfill”.  “Trench 
backfill” is further defined below the gradation as the section between the 
top of pipe bedding up to the bottom of roadway subgrade.  Please see the 
following questions:  
a. Question: Is this correct that Class 2 AB is intended for not just the 

trench backfill, but also the pipe bedding and pipe zone / 
envelope section? 

Answer:  Class 2 AB or other imported material, free from vegetable 
matter and other deleterious substances, meeting the 
gradations and requirements specified in the Plans and 
Specifications, shall be used for pipe bedding, envelope, 
and trench backfill material. 

b. Question: Is that correct that no existing / excavated native material is 
allowed in the trench backfill zone between top of pipe 
bedding and roadway subgrade? 

Answer:  Correct. 
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c. Question:  It appears the “Construction Plan” sheets depict all pipe 

trenches requiring a 12” thick AC deep lift over 6” of 
compacted subgrade (per legend and referenced Detail #2 
on Sheet C9.1).  If no native is allowed in the trench backfill 
zone, then it is assumed this 12” AC deep lift is placed 
directly on the Class 2 AB required per the “trench backfill” 
specification and placed to the subgrade elevation? 

Answer: The 12-inch AC deep lift at pipe trenches shall be placed 
over Class 2 AB or other imported material, free from 
vegetable matter and other deleterious substances, meeting 
the gradations and requirements specified in the Plans and 
Specifications for pipe bedding, envelope, and trench 
backfill material. 

 
45. Question: Please confirm Conservation Corp is including removal of tree stump as 

part of their tree removal work.  
Answer: Yes, per Specifications, Contractor is only to coordinate work with 

Conservation Corps and include their work into the Contractors schedule. 
 

46. Question: Please confirm on Conservation Corp removal item of Signs includes 
removal of post sign is mounted to.  

Answer:  Yes, per Specifications, Contractor is only to coordinate work with 
Conservation Corps and include their work into the Contractors schedule. 
Refer to Question 81. 

 
47. Question: Please confirm on Conservation Corp install work items (other than supply 

of bench, bollard, trash receptacle, bike rack units which Contractor is 
responsible to furnish), the Corp is doing all work associated with install 
and supplying all other misc material needed for complete install.  

Answer: Yes, per Specifications, Contractor is only to furnish and deliver materials 
and coordinate work with Conservation Corps to include their work into the 
Contractors schedule. Refer to Question 82. 

 
48. Question: Please clarify if any utilities are connected to the parking meters to be 

removed and reinstalled (note 5 on civil Demo sheets), or are they solar 
operated only? Also, can you provide concrete anchoring detail?   

Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued.  The Contractor will be responsible 
to coordinate the removal of the machines with the City.  City will remove 
and reinstalled the machines.  The Contractor will be responsible for 
installing the signs and posts.   

 
49. Question: North sidewalk area around STA 33+00 (Stanley Electric), several 

monitoring wells were observed that are not identified on the plans. How 
are these being handled?  

Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued.  These should be handled the same 
way as all others, as shown on Demolition Plan Sheets, Note 18. 

 
50. Question: Will adjustments (lowering & raising) for construction needs on 

vaults/maintenance holes/etc for the dry utilities be handled by the 
respective utility companies (PGE, ATT, etc)?   
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Answer: The Contractor shall be responsible for adjusting existing utilities to finish 
grade, including coordination with private utility companies. Refer to Sheet 
C1.5, Note No. 4, and Sheets C3.0 – C3.8, Notes No. 2 and Key Note 11.  

 
51. Question: There are several callouts on civil Demo sheets for existing fence (chain 

link and wrought iron) to be relocated outside ROW. Where does fence 
work get paid?  

Answer: A Letter of Clarification will be issued.  Bid Item will be included for removal 
and relocation. 

 
52. Question: There are sewer/storm drain trenches throughout the project running in 

various directions that require a 12” AC deep lift for the top section of the 
trench backfill.  Similar 12” AC deep lifts are required adjacent to all new 
curbs (ie., curb and gutter, corner bulbs, median curbs, side street 
conforms, etc,).  Per the “Construction Plan” sheet’s legend and referenced 
Detail #2 on Sheet C9.1, the top 3” section of this AC deep lift shall be 
placed concurrent with the final 3” AC overlay throughout the entire 
project.  Intent / order of work is unclear regarding constructability, please 
see the following questions: 
a. Question: Due to various trenches in multiple directions and location 

of deep lifts adjacent to concrete, temporary steel plating of 
all trenches / deep lift locations is not feasible until the end 
of the project’s final overlay (or allowed with the maximum 
50-foot trench plate requirement).  Additionally, the top 
section of AC can’t be completed later and left low 
temporarily due to the inability of the public to travel safely 
with numerous 3” dropoffs throughout the 
project.  Therefore, it is assumed that the intent is for all 12” 
AC deep lift locations to be paved flush with existing AC, 
followed by a 3” grind / final 3” AC overlay performed later 
per Detail #2 on Sheet C9.1.  Please confirm this is the 
intent or clarify otherwise. 

 Answer: The Contractor shall provide a 12.0-inch AC deep lift that 
includes a final 3.0-inch surface layer placed concurrently 
with the AC overlay, using their means and methods. 

b. Question: If the intent is for all of these 12” AC deep lift locations to 
have the top 3” of AC temporarily paved per the previous 
question, then this will require a considerable amount of 
temporary / sacrificial AC.  We request a bid item be added 
for this temporary 3” of AC in all deep lift trenches. 

Answer: 12.0-inch AC deep lift is paid in the “12” Asphalt Deeplift” bid 
item, for the various project numbers. 

c. Question: We request the various / applicable bid item quantities for 
grind / overlay also be increased to account for the 
additional SF of grind / overlay required for all 12” AC deep 
lift locations.  Currently the grind / overlay quantities do not 
account for the SF of 12” AC deep lift locations where 
required over trenches or excavations adjacent to concrete; 
however, it appears it will be required for all of these 
locations. 
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Answer: The Contractor shall provide a 12.0-inch AC deep lift that 
includes a final 3.0-inch surface layer placed concurrently 
with the AC overlay, using their means and methods. There 
are no changes to the bid schedule. 

 
53. Question:  Previous Q&A #12 answer is confusing, implying that the 3” grind / overlay 

comes from 2 each 1.5” grinds.  Additionally, all “Construction Plan” sheets 
call for a 3” grind / overlay only.  Some of the bid schedules still call for a 
1.5” grind / overlay.  Please further clarify the intent of the 1.5” grind / 
overlay items (locations, relation to the 3” grind / overlay item in Q&A #12, 
etc,..). 

 Answer: A 3.0-inch grind and overlay shall be constructed per the Plans. There is 
no 1.5-inch grind and overlay construction. However, the payment for the 
3.0-inch grind and overlay shall be split amongst several bid items. For 
instance, between Center Street and El Dorado Street, Project No. 
PW1607/ATPL 5008(158) - ATP CYCLE 2 pays for a portion of the 3.0-
inch grind and overlay, and Project No. PW1732/ATPSB1L 5008(170) – 
MEASURE K OVERLAY pays for another portion of the 3.0-inch grind and 
overlay.  

 
54. Question: Reference the “Construction Plan” sheets and legend description for 

“Digout and Repair”.  Description says the contactor is to digout / repair AC 
to a minimum depth of 3”.  However, it also states that we’ll digout to the 
top of the existing concrete layer.  Per contract documents (Geotech, 
etc,..), it appears the existing AC is greater than 3” in some locations and 
concrete may be deeper as well.  The “Base Failure Repair” bid item pays 
by the SF.  Therefore, it isn’t possible for the contractor to accurately price 
this scope of work without have a definitive depth for SF of AC removal / 
replacement.  Please clarify an assumed depth that we are to base pricing 
on. 

 Answer: Assume 5.0-inches for bidding. A Letter of Clarification will be issued. 
 
55. Question: Reference the “Topography & Demolition Plan” sheets and legend 

description for asphalt removal in upper right corner of plan sheet (diagonal 
hatching).  Description states these areas are to also include the concrete 
layer underneath.  This would require additional sawcutting, etc,… for 
removal of concrete inside excavation footprint where applicable and it 
more costly.  However not clear where applicable due to varying AC 
depths, concrete location vertically, etc,…  Therefore not able to accurately 
price this portion of the scope.  Please clarify a bid assumption on this to 
use for pricing basis, or provide an allowance bid item for concrete layer 
removal underneath existing AC. 

 Answer: Use the “Remove Existing Concrete Slab Below Pavement” bid item, for 
the various project numbers.  

 
56. Question: Some of the new concrete proposed requires an AB section underneath 

the concrete such as stamped colored concrete, colored concrete band, 
concrete mow strip, driveways and heavy-duty concrete.  Please confirm 
whether any of the other new concrete scopes proposed require a new AB 
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section to be installed regardless of what existing section is there now (ie., 
curb and gutter, curbs, sidewalk, ramps, etc,…). 

 Answer: In general, curb and gutter, curbs, sidewalks, and ramps, require the 
installation of a new AB section. The Contractor shall be responsible for 
following Plans and Specifications for where AB is required. 

 
57. Question: Special Provisions make reference to detours in several locations.  Base 

Bid Item #2 under Measure K Median bid schedule is described with 
“Detours” in the bid item description also.  Will any traffic / pedestrian 
detours be allowed to expedite construction, minimize impacts to the public 
and save costs?  If so, which streets will detours be allowed for, allowed 
durations and allowed days (weekdays vs. weekends, etc,..)? 

 Answer: Refer to Specifications Section 12-1.01, Maintaining Traffic, for 
requirements for traffic lane and sidewalk closures. 

 
58. Question: Please confirm construction area signs are allowed to be fabric / rag signs, 

and there is no requirement for post mounted construction area signs to be 
installed / removed as part of the project for start / end of Miner Ave and all 
side streets within project limits.   

 Answer: Refer to Specifications Section 12-1.05, Construction Area and 
Informational Signs, for requirements for construction area signs. 

 
59. Question: Per Special Provision Section 19-1.02 (Roadway Excavation), the grading 

/ roadway excavation / subgrade prep bid items within each of the various 
bid schedules is to be final pay.  Contractor can only quantify with the cross 
sections provided in the plan set.  The cross sections provided do not 
appear to include the median excavation required (curbs, DG, topsoil, 
etc,..).  Section shown only depicts and stops at the deep lifts adjacent to 
the curbs.  Please provide updated cross sections in order to accurately 
price the final pay roadway excavation items.  

 Answer: Refer to Plans, 1/C2.0. 
 
60. Question: Where does the AC sawcutting for sewer / storm drain systems pay - in the 

applicable sewer / storm drain bid items, or the “Sawcut Asphalt” bid items 
within each bid schedule? 

 Answer: AC sawcutting for sewer / storm drain systems is paid in the “Sawcut 
Asphalt” bid items, for the various project numbers. 

 
61. Question: Reference Special Provision page 32.  Several of the bid item descriptions 

(bench, bike rack, etc,..) state that the contractor is required to furnish and 
deliver only, coordination assistance to be provided by contractor but install 
by Greater Valley Conservation Corps. Some site furnishing descriptions 
vary slightly based on the bid schedule and some imply the contractor is to 
install the item.  The actual bid items for all say “Furnish and 
Install”.  Please clarify the full scope requirement of the contractor for the 
various site furnishings - benches, bike racks, trash receptacles and 
bollards).  

 Answer: The Contractor shall coordinate and prepare the site for the site furnishing 
installation work, as noted on the Plans and Specifications, for only those 
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bid items that specify the Greater Valley Conservation Corps 
(PW1607/ATPL 5008(158) and PW1732/ATPSB1L 5008(170)) all other bid 
items for the various projects are the responsibility of the contractor to 
furnish and install.  

 
62. Question: Reference Special Provision page 34.  Bid item #4 description for removing 

bench / trash receptacles states the contractor is to “coordinate” with 
Greater Valley Conservation Corps.  Please clarify who is required to 
complete the actual removal of the various site furnishings removal bid 
items. 

 Answer: Removal of existing benches and trash receptacles, will be performed by 
the Greater Valley Conservation Corps for only those bid items that specify 
the Corps, the contractor just needs to coordinate the Corps work with the 
Contractors schedule so that it doesn’t cause any delays to the contractor’s 
scheduled work.  

 
63. Question: TS-1.0 through TS-1.3 plans as well as all of the street lighting plans call 

for New and Existing poles to be painted Stockton Green.  Sheets TS-1.4 
through TS-1.12 state for only the New poles to be painted Stockton 
Green.  Can you confirm that all the Existing poles from TS-1.4 through 
TS-1.12 are NOT to be painted? Also, what is paining specs? Will this be 
water based paint or polyurethane based paint? 

Answer: All new and existing poles shall be painted. A Letter of Clarification will be 
issued.  Please refer to City of Stockton Standard Detail R-86. Refer to 
Question 90. 

 
64. Question:  For ‘Misc Walkway Transitions’ bid items at LS, it’s unreasonable for 

contractor to know this scope of work at bid time to bid at Lump Sum. LS 
payment puts a lot of risk on the contractor not knowing what all this work 
may entail (locations, depth, etc). Please change item to an estimated SF 
or CY payment, or clearly define areas on the plans so work can be 
quantified to form a basis of how to bid this item.  

Answer: Assume 1,000 SF for bidding for BRT 1B, and assume 500 SF for bidding 
for Open Window. A Letter of Clarification will be issued. 

 
65. Question: Regarding ‘Remove Exist Concrete Slab Below Pavement’ items, seven 

bore holes were conducted within existing roadway area and all 7ea show 
concrete underlayment present. The plans do not provide outline of 
concrete limits. Does City anticipate concrete being present where 
excavation below existing asphalt section is needed for utility install, 
medians, curb/gutter improvements, roundabout area (for work within limits 
of exist roadway)? 

Answer: Yes. The “Remove Existing Concrete Slab Below Pavement” bid items 
cover this work. 

 
66. Question: For Remove Exist Tree items in bid tables 6 & 7 (that contractor is 

responsible for), is grinding the stump 2’ down & removing organics and 
then replacing with structural section acceptable due to existing nearby 
utilities making full removal of stump impractical (without damage to 
utilities)? 
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Answer: Tree removal shall be performed per Specifications Section 20-1.02, Tree 
Removal and Pruning and Root Trimming. 

 
67. Question: Regarding 4ea Basement Vault Access to be removed and receive new 

access covers (sheet C3.4 south side as part of Alt Bid item 18), please 
provide detail of access to be installed as existing openings appear to be 
various sizes. Detail is provided on sheets C9.2 and 9.3 for the 2ea part of 
Base Bid but nothing for the other 4ea.   

Answer: Contractor shall remove and replace the basement vault access for the 
Alternative Bid using their means and methods. 

 
68. Question: Regarding back of walk tie-in to building fronts with tile surfaces/special 

architectural finishes, it is inevitable that work will cause some adjustments 
due to equipment vibrations in conducting the work.  Has the City 
addressed this with the owners, and how will the City address during 
course of the work? 

Answer: The Contractor is responsible for protecting existing building fronts and 
architectural finishes, per Specifications Section 15, Existing Facilities. A 
Letter of Clarification will be issued to clarify the required coordination. 

 
69. Question: Please provide a list of bid items for each bid table that will be handled as 

Final Pay items. 
Answer: The “Remove Existing Pavement” bid items are the only final pay items.   
 

70. Question: Reference plan sheets TC1.1 (Phase 1 - Northerly Side), TC1.2 (Phase 2 
- Southerly Side) and TC1.4 (Phase 4 - Medians).  These plan sheets 
depict traffic cones being placed temporarily for daily lane closures while 
maintaining one lane open in each direction of travel on Miner 
Avenue.  Additionally per Special Provision Section 12-1.01 (Maintaining 
Traffic - Page 63 / Paragraph 3) and Section 12-1.02 (Traffic Control 
System for Lane and Road Closure - Page 65 / Paragraph 5), it appears 
the Contractor is required to remove these traffic cones daily at the end of 
each work period and lane closures are only allowed between 9:00am - 
3:30pm.  As long as the Contractor maintains one lane open in each 
direction of travel on Miner Avenue, will the Contractor be allowed to 
permanently close lanes / parking stalls adjacent to work areas with glue 
down channelizers until those work areas are completed.   

Answer: The use of channelizers glued to the pavement at the locations where 
bulbouts are being constructed is allowed.  The permanent removal of 
lanes and parking adjacent to it shall be coordinated with the businesses 
adjacent to the spaces being closed, and advanced notice shall be 
provided to the businesses at least 72-hours prior to removal, per the City’s 
standard notification requirements.  Contractor needs to maintain minimum 
one through lane plus some left turn storage on each direction on Miner 
Avenue at all-times. 

 
71. Question: Reference Special Provision Section 9-1.03 (Payments / Page 29).  For 

Item #10 (Sawcut Asphalt), the scope of work states that the item includes 
sawcutting for both asphalt concrete and concrete.  On page 30, Item #16 
(Concrete Sidewalk) states that the item includes “all sawcuts”.  Similar 



Last Updated: 12/5/2019 

Page 13 of 18 
 

language provided for the same items within each bid schedule.  Please 
see the following questions: 
a. Question: Do the “Sawcut Asphalt” bid items of each bid schedule 

include all concrete sawcutting as well as asphalt (ie., 
sidewalk demo / conforms, curb and gutter demo / 
conforms, etc,…)?  

 Answer: “Sawcut Asphalt” includes saw cutting of asphalt concrete 
only. No concrete saw cutting. A Letter of Clarification will 
be issued. 

b. Question: For bid items to “Remove Existing Concrete Slab Below 
Pavement”, does the applicable sawcutting for this scope 
pay here or in “Sawcut Asphalt” bid items? 

 Answer: Any saw cutting of existing concrete slab is paid in this bid 
item. Saw cutting of asphalt concrete is paid in the “Sawcut 
Asphalt” bid items. 

c. Question: For sawcutting of asphalt required to remove / install sewer 
and storm drain facilities, does the sawcutting pay in the 
“Sawcut Asphalt” bid items or applicable underground items 
(ie., 10” sanitary sewer pipe, etc,..)? 

 Answer: The saw cutting of asphalt concrete, including the saw 
cutting of asphalt concrete for the removal or installation of 
sewer and storm drain facilities, is included in the “Sawcut 
Asphalt” bid items. 

 
72. Question: Reference Special Provision Section 87 (Existing Electrical Systems / Page 

182).  States that temporary standards / equipment may be required and 
the Contractor shall include in pricing if the Engineer deems 
necessary.  The Contractor is not able to know this ahead of time.  Are 
temporary traffic signals required by the Contractor?  If they are required, 
please add a bid item for this scope of work? 

Answer: The Plans show that the Contractor can retain the existing traffic signal 
cabinets, controllers, and other existing equipment to run temporary traffic 
signal by setting the existing cabinet on top of the home run pull box, and 
connecting the conductors to the cabinet and operating the signal.  The 
minimum indication for each movement is two signal heads per 
CAMUTCD.  Temporary signal pole(s) (such as 1B) with display may be 
needed where poles are being removed and there is not a minimum of two 
signal heads per movement. Refer to LOC No. 4. 

 
73. Question: Reference Special Provision Section 12-1.01 (Maintaining Traffic).  On 

page 64 (Section titled “Temporary Pedestrian Access Routes”), states that 
alternate pedestrian routes need to be accessible and detectable.  Further 
reference is made to potentially needing proximity-actuated audible signs 
as the preferred means to warn pedestrians who are blind or have low 
vision.  Are temporary proximity-actuated audible signs required by the 
Contractor?  If they are required, please add a bid item for this scope of 
work?   

Answer: Proximity-actuated audible signs are not required. At the Contractor’s 
option, they may be provided by the Contractor to meet “Temporary 
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Pedestrian Access Routes” in Specifications Section 12-1.01, Maintaining 
Traffic.  

 
74. Question: For the various bid schedules / bid items for scope to “Furnish and Install 

Bike Rack”, it appears that each callout note for a bike rack represents a 
set of 3 EA individual bike rack posts (not 1 EA bid item quantity = 1 EA 
bike rack post).  Please confirm this is correct. 

Answer: Confirmed. Each callout note is for a set of 3 bike racks. 
 

75. Question: LOC #2 clarified the detail notes for the Stamped Colored Concrete (Detail 
#1 on Sheet L1.13) to use a dust-on color hardener system instead of 
integral colored concrete.  Detail #8 on Sheet L1.13 (Colored Concrete 
Band) still notes an “integral colored concrete”.  Please confirm that these 
colored bands are to be integral colored and not a dust-on color hardener 
like the stamped concrete. 

Answer: Colored concrete bands shall be integral colored. Note that bands are 
different than the stamped colored concrete.  Stamped colored concrete 
areas are to use a dust-on system, per the Bomanite product 
recommendations. 

 
76. Question: LOC #2 / Item 6 (Decomposed Granite) - Page 5 / Paragraph 6 mentions 

applying a soil sterilant to the subgrade of areas to be paved before 
baserock operations.  It appears the DG gets placed directly on weed 
barrier / subgrade.  It is unclear where soil sterilant applies, if required at 
all.  Please clarify if any soil sterilant is required to be used for this project 
(ie., underneath DG, new concrete, new AC deep lifts, etc,…). 

Answer: Except for DG in tree well areas, soil sterilant shall be applied to all DG 
areas, such as DG in new planting areas. Refer to L3.1, Planting Note No. 
10. 

 
77. Question: Reference LOC #3 - Item #10 (Existing Facilities / Utility Facilities).  The 

second paragraph of this section states that removing / plugging / filling 
storm drain pipes in conflict with new improvements shall be included in the 
various items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed.  Per 
revised plan sheets provided in LOC #3 and LOC #3 / Item #3 (Bid Items 
#13A and #15A of the respective bid schedules), it implies that new bid 
forms will be issued with “Remove Existing Storm Drain Pipe” bid items for 
this scope of work.  Additionally, we have existing bid items for “Plug and 
Fill Storm Drain Pipe”.  Please confirm this is correct and that all removing 
/ plugging & filling storm drain pipe work is not incidental costs to be carried 
by the contractor in various other bid items. 

Answer: New bid forms were issued as part of LOC No. 4, which include “Remove 
Existing Storm Drain Pipe” as a new bid item. The removal of existing storm 
drain pipe is included in the “Remove Existing Storm Drain Pipe” bid item 
only. The plugging and filling of storm drain pipe is included in the “Plug 
and Fill Storm Drain Pipe” bid item only. 

 
78. Question: Reference LOC #3 - Item #11 (Existing Facilities / Fences).  The second 

paragraph of this section states that removal / relocation / reinstallation of 
existing fences shall be included in the various items of work and no 
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additional compensation will be allowed.  Please see the following 
questions: 
a. Question: Per revised plan sheets provided in LOC #3 and LOC #3 / 

Item #3 (Bid Items #14A and #16A of the respective bid 
schedules), it implies that new bid forms will be issued with 
“Fence Relocation” bid items for this scope of work.  Please 
confirm this is correct and that all fence relocation work is 
not incidental costs to be carried by the contractor in various 
other bid items. 

Answer: New bid forms were issued as part of LOC No. 4, which 
include “Fence Relocation” as a new bid item. The 
relocation of fences is included in the “Fence Relocation” bid 
item only. 

b. Question: Please confirm the new “Fence Relocation” bid items will 
cover all fence relocates required for the project and these 
are those shown on the “Topography & Demolition Plan” 
sheets.  

Answer: Confirmed. 
 

79. Question: Reference LOC #3 – Item #13 (Stamped Colored Concrete).  The last 
paragraph on Page 5 references stamped asphalt.  Please confirm this 
project does not include any stamped asphalt. 

Answer: Stamped asphalt is not part of this project. A Letter of Clarification will be 
issued. 

 
80. Question: Reference LOC #3 / Item #16 and #17 / Page 7and & 8 (Parking Meters) - 

Is appears the Contractor is required to remove and reinstall all parking 
meter signs / poles, with payment included in the Mobilization item of each 
applicable bid schedule.  Please provide a detail to clarify how the poles 
are to be reinstalled. 

Answer: Refer to City Standard Drawing No. R-109. 
 

81. Question: Q&A #46 states that the Conservation Corp is removing the trees and 
stumps.  To clarify, does the scope for “Remove Existing Tree” bid item 
within each bid schedule only require the Contractor to coordinate / 
schedule Conservation Corp work (no cost to be included for the Contractor 
to remove any trees for this project)? 

Answer: For those bid items that specify the Conservation Corps., tree removal will 
be performed by the Corps and not the Contractor.  However, please note 
that in Project No. PW1515/CML 5008(188) – BRT 1B, there is no Corps 
work included in the “Remove Existing Tree” bid item. For this bid item, the 
Contractor shall be responsible for all work involved.  

 
82. Question: Q&A #47 states that the Conservation Corp supplies any miscellaneous 

material and installs benches, bollards, trash receptacles, bike racks, 
etc,..  Contractor is only responsible to furnish / deliver these items and 
coordinate the Conservation Corp work.  Please confirm the Conservation 
Corp covers all embedment’s required.  Additionally, for bike racks 
specifically (Detail #7 on Sheet L1.13), there is more detailed coordination 
as the posts require concrete footings and they appear to tie into the 
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colored concrete bands completed by the Contractor.  Please confirm that 
the Conservation Corp will excavate / pour footings / set bike rack posts 
prior, and the Contractor will then pour the colored concrete bands 
afterwards.  If not, please clarify the responsibility for the bike racks. 

Answer: The Contractor shall be responsible for all site preparation work, such as 
anchoring and embedment, excavating, and pouring of concrete footings. 
The Conservation Corps. will install the specified items, and only after the 
site preparation work has been completed. A Letter of Clarification will be 
issued to clarify this. 

 
83. Question: Regarding joint pattern for new sidewalk: Sheets C4.0-4.9 of the plans in 

both note 1 & concrete legend state concrete is per standard drawing R-
52. Additionally, Landscape plans L1.1-L1.10, Symbol 1 for Sidewalk refers 
to Civil Drawings for detail. However, sheet L1.12, detail 1 for Typical 
Sidewalk Layout shows a 2’ x 2’ joint pattern. Please clarify joint pattern to 
be used for sidewalk. If different than Standard Detail R-50, please provide 
info on joint…green saw or tooled by hand, and width, depth, spacing?  

Answer: Sidewalk scoring and expansion joint layout shall be per 1/L1.12. 
Weakened plane joints shall be provided at 12.0-feet on center maximum. 
Refer to City of Stockton Standard Drawing No. R-50 for scoring, expansion 
joint, and weakened plane joint details. A Letter of Clarification will be 
issued. 

 
84. Question: Reference plan sheets for “Topography & Demolition Plan”.  The legend 

states that the diagonal cross hatch represents areas of existing asphalt 
pavement removal / disposal.  These areas include typical roadway 
excavation areas (adjacent to curb & gutter, etc,..), however plans also 
depict the same hatching for areas of existing pipe removal and new pipe 
installations.  Please confirm that asphalt pavement removal / disposal 
within proposed and demolished pipe trenches is to be compensated under 
the applicable pipe items per LF, not under the various Grading / Roadway 
Excavation / Subgrade Preparation bid items.  If it pays under the Roadway 
Excavation bid items, please update these quantities to reflect this. 

Answer: All asphalt pavement removal, including at pipe trenches, is included in the 
applicable “Remove Existing Pavement” bid items. Quantities reflect this. 
No updates are warranted. 

 
85. Question: Reference Detail #1 on Sheet C9.1 (Median Curb).  Please see the 

following questions: 
a. Question: Per “Construction Plan” sheets, areas of median curb have 

a 12” AC deep lift constructed adjacent to the median 
curbs.  Detail #1 shows a diagonal cross hatched section 
underneath the AC section.  What is this section supposed 
to represent (material, depth, etc,..)? 

 Answer: The diagonal cross-hatching represents base material, such 
as Class II AB, where noted. None noted.  

b. Question: Detail #1 provides the median curb 8” reveal height and 
bottom of curb dimension that extends 6” beneath the 
diagonal cross hatched section.  If the diagonal cross 
hatched section is incorrect and 6” dimension would be from 
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bottom of the 12” AC deep lift, this still would make the 
median curb 26” tall.  Is this correct and actually required to 
be this tall?  Median curb height is unclear and needs 
clarification, please provide. 

 Answer: The total median curb depth is 26.0-inches, per Plans 
1/C9.1. 

 
86. Question: Reference Detail #5 and #4 on Sheet C9.1 (Roundabout Curb).  Please 

see the following questions: 
a. Question: Per “Construction Plan” sheets, areas of roundabout curb 

have a 12” AC deep lift constructed adjacent to it.  Detail #4 
shows a diagonal cross hatched section underneath the AC 
section.  What is this section supposed to represent 
(material, depth, etc,..)? 

 Answer: The diagonal cross-hatching represents base material, such 
as Class II AB, where noted. None noted.  

b. Question: Detail #4 provides the roundabout curb 6” reveal height and 
bottom of curb dimension that extends 6” beneath the 
diagonal cross hatched section.  If the diagonal cross 
hatched section is incorrect and 6” dimension would be from 
bottom of the 12” AC deep lift, this still would make the 
roundabout curb 24” tall.  Is this correct?  Please clarify 
height. 

 Answer: The total roundabout curb depth is 24.0-inches, per Plans 
4/C9.1. 

 
87. Question: City Standard Detail R-57 / Page 1 (Special Commercial Ramp Driveway) 

shows “sidewalk” behind the throat of each driveway, implying the two 
areas pay under separate bid items.  City Standard Detail R-57 / Page 2 / 
Section A-A shows the a #4 rebar mat at 18” O.C. that extends from the 
front of the driveway to the back of the “sidewalk”, potentially implying the 
whole area pays in the driveway items.  Please clarify whether the portion 
of “sidewalk” behind each driveway is to be compensated under the SF 
sidewalk bid items or the EA driveway bid items. 

Answer: The “sidewalk” portions that are associated with the driveways are included 
in the “Commercial Driveway” bid items. 

 
88. Question: Reference Detail 1 on Sheet L1.13 (Stamped Colored Concrete).  Please 

see the following questions: 
a. Question: Key Note #1 calls for Bomanite Brick Red (67%) and 

Paprika (33%).  Is this requiring the brick red primary color 
to be 100% and the paprika release color to be 33% 
coverage?  If not, please clarify the intent of the percentages 
noted for each color. 

 Answer: These percentages identify the Bomanite color hardener 
system mix, for the stamped colored concrete. In other 
words, the Bomanite color hardener system mix shall 
consist of a percentage of Brick Red, and a percentage of 
Paprika. The revised percentages are 85% Brick Red, and 
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15% Paprika. A Letter of Clarification will be issued. Refer 
to revised Section 20-1.03, Stamped Colored Concrete, in 
LOC No. 3, for additional specifications.  

b. Question: Please confirm Bomanite “or equal” will be allowed for color 
and pattern. 

 Answer: Bomanite, or an approved equal, is allowed for the color and 
the pattern. 

 
89. Question: Previous Q&A has clarified that the Contractor is required to carry cost for 

QC/QA.  Please confirm whether the QC/QA is required to be an 
independent 3rd party. 

 Answer: QC shall be performed by an independent 3rd party, and the Contractor is 
responsible for QC costs. QA will be performed by a City consultant, as 
part of the City’s Quality Assurance Program, per Specifications Section 6-
1.03, Testing. Refer to the Instruction the Bidders. 

 
90. Question: For the trash receptacles, detail notes state they shall be “Stockton 

Green”.  The manufacturer referenced in the detail has asked for the RAL 
# (international color code) or the manufacturer name to price the correct 
color.  Please provide. 

 Answer: Use RAL 6007 or Sherwin-Williams #852209758 “Stockton Green”, Kelly-
Moore #17-101-0303R CV740 “Stockton Green”, or an approved equal. A 
Letter of Clarification will be issued. 

 
91. Question: For areas requiring a 12” AC deep base lift to be constructed (excluding 

pipe install / pipe removal areas) - does removal of the 12” existing material 
pay in bid items for Roadway Excavation (Final Pay) or Remove Existing 
Pavement? 

 Answer: All asphalt pavement removal, including at 12” asphalt deeplift areas, is 
included in the applicable “Remove Existing Pavement” bid items.  

 
92. Question: Regarding Wastewater bid table, item 3 covers removal of existing 

pavement; however, there is no item in this bid table to cover the 12” 
Asphalt Deeplift for both sewer main removal work and sewer main install 
work. Please clarify where this pave back gets paid.   

Answer: 12” Asphalt Deeplift for the sewer main work is included in the “12” Asphalt 
Deeplift” bid items in Project Nos. PW1607/ATPL 5008(158) - ATP CYCLE 
2, PW1732/ATPSB1L 5008(170) – ATP CYCLE 3, PW1732/ATPSB1L 
5008(170) – MEASURE K MEDIAN, and PW1515/CML 5008(188) – BRT 
1B. Refer to Plan Sheets C1.2, C1.3, C1.4, and C1.7 for their respective 
limits. 

 
 

 
 


